
North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board

April 13, 2021

Silvio Re              Certified Mail 7016 2710 0000 2653 3906
7166 Humboldt Hill Road
Eureka, CA 95503

Dear Silvio Re,

Subject: Notice of Violation and Transmittal of Inspection Report for March 11, 
2021 Inspection of Trinity County Assessor’s Parcel 022-200-34

File: Cannabis Program Inspections, Humboldt County, March 2020 Humboldt 
County Inspections, CIWQS Place ID 873461

This letter is to notify you of observed violations of the requirements listed below for 
unauthorized discharges to waters of the state from the above-referenced parcel 
(Property):

1. Water Quality Control Plan for the North Coast Region (Basin Plan) Section 4.2.1
2. California Water Code (Water Code) Section 13260 and 13264
3. Federal Clean Water Act Section 301 (a), 401 and 404

Within 30 days, please contact Regional Water Board staff to discuss your plan to 
correct the observed violations.

Background

On March 11, 2021, staff from the Regional Water Board, accompanied by staff of 
the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), State Water Resources 
Control Board Division of Water Rights, and various law enforcement personnel, 
inspected the subject Property.  The purpose of the inspection was to evaluate 
onsite development and conditions, and to identify and assess any impacts or 
threatened impacts to the quality and beneficial uses of waters of the state. 

Attached is a copy of the water quality inspection report (Attachment B – March 11, 
2021 Inspection Report).  Please review the Inspection Report carefully and 
completely.
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The Inspection Report contains recommendations for correcting observed violations 
and advises you of the Regional Water Board permits necessary for instream work 
and projects/activities that result in discharges of waste to receiving waters.

Relevant Requirements

During the inspection, Regional Water Board staff identified several features and 
conditions on the Property that represent violations of water quality requirements and 
regulations.  Attachment A – Regulatory Citations, provides references to these, and 
related, requirements and regulations.

Observed Violations

As documented in the March 11, 2021 Inspection Report, Regional Water Board staff 
observed violations of the Basin Plan Section 4.2.1 Prohibitions 1 and 2, and Water 
Code sections 13260 and 13264.  Staff observed these violations at Property locations 
identified in the March 11, 2021, Inspection Report as WQ1, WQ2, WQ3.

Additional Potential Liabilities

The Regional Water Board is in the process of considering whether the violations of the 
Water Code, and the Basin Plan warrant further enforcement.  We encourage you to 
take steps, to correct the violations as soon as possible, securing any applicable 
permits from this and other agencies prior to conducting work.  Please note that the 
existing conditions, as observed and documented in the Inspection Report, may 
represent continuing violations of the Water Code and Basin Plan.

Please note that correcting the conditions of non‐compliance at the Property does not 
preclude enforcement for the violations alleged in this notice.  As noted above, the 
Regional Water Board reserves its right to fully enforce the law against any violation and 
threatened violation by taking enforcement actions such as a cleanup and abatement 
order, time schedule order, administrative civil liabilities, and referral to the California 
Attorney General’s office.  Administrative civil liabilities may be assessed on a daily 
basis in the amount up to $5,000 for each day the violation occurs or up to $10 per 
gallon, but not both pursuant to Water Code section 13350. 

Directive to Obtain Regulatory Coverage Prior to Future Activities Involving or 
Resulting in Discharges of Waste to Waters of the State

During the March 11, 2021, inspection, staff observed cannabis cultivation operations of 
sufficient size and scope to require regulatory coverage under  the State Water 
Resources Control Board (State Water Board) Order No. WQ-2017-0023-DWQ, 
General Waste Discharge Requirements and Waiver of Waste Discharge Requirements 
for Discharges of Waste Associated with Cannabis Cultivation Activities (Statewide 
General Order). 
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Please be aware that, pursuant to Water Code sections 13260 and 13264, if you elect 
to resume/continue cannabis cultivation on the subject Property, you must either: 

1) Enroll the property under the Statewide General Order by providing the information 
required in the online application process.  The application can be accessed at:  
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/cannabis/ 

Submit the application fee within 30 days of submitting the on-line application.  
Failure to submit the application fee within 30 days will result in the application being 
voided and authorization terminated.  Payments shall be identified using the Fee 
Payment Application Number (found on the Notice of Receipt).  All checks or money 
orders shall be made payable to: “State Water Resources Control Board,” and shall 
be delivered to:

(By US Mail):

Accounting Office
Attn: Water Quality Fees – Cannabis General Order
P.O. Box 1888
Sacramento, CA 95812-1888

(In person or by courier delivery):

Accounting Office
Attn: Water Quality Fees –Cannabis General Order
1001 I Street
Sacramento, CA 95814-2828

OR:

2) File a Report of Waste Discharge in order to obtain individual Waste Discharge 
Requirements (WDRs) specific to your property.

Please submit the appropriate documents and payments to:

North Coast Water Board
Attn: Diana Henrioulle
Enforcement Unit
5550 Skylane Boulevard, Suite A
Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Water Code section 13260 states, in relevant part:
(a) Each of the following persons shall file with the appropriate regional board a 
report of the discharge, containing the information which may be required by the 
regional board:

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/cannabis/
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(1) Any person discharging waste, or proposing to discharge waste, within 
any region that could affect the quality of the waters of the state, other than 
into a community sewer system.

Water Code section 13264 states, in relevant part:
(a) No person shall initiate any new discharge of waste or make any material 
changes in any discharge…prior to the filing of the report required by Section 
13260 and no person shall take any of these actions after filing the report but 
before whichever of the following occurs first:

(1) The issuance of waste discharge requirements pursuant to Section 13263.

Failure to comply with Water Code sections 13260 and 13264 may result in an 
administrative civil liability under Water code sections 13261 and 13265 not to exceed 
$1,000 per violation for each day in which each violation occurs.

Future correspondence regarding this matter will be sent to you at this address unless 
an alternative address is provided to the Regional Water Board.  Failure to accept mail 
from the Regional Water Board is not a valid excuse for non-compliance with any future 
enforcement orders, and a failure to respond or otherwise appear at a future 
enforcement proceeding could subject you to a default order and the imposition of 
administrative civil liability.

If you have questions about what is required of you to comply with the requirements 
outlined above, please contact Regional Water Board staff Adona White at 
Adona.White@waterboards.ca.gov or by phone at (707) 576-2672 to advise as to your 
plan and schedule to correct the alleged violations as documented in the inspection 
report.

You may also contact me at Diana.Henrioulle@waterboards.ca.gov or by phone at 
(707) 576-2350.  Additionally, we are available to meet with you if you wish to 
discuss this letter or our waste discharge regulatory programs in further detail.

Sincerely,

Diana Henrioulle, P.E.
Enforcement Unit

210413_ACW_dp_SilvioRe_NOV

Attachments:  Attachment A - Regulatory Citations
Attachment B – March 11, 2021, Inspection Report

mailto:Adona.White@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Diana.Henrioulle@waterboards.ca.gov
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Certified Mail – Return Receipt requested

cc: 
North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board
Northcoast.Cannabis@waterboards.ca.gov 
Claudia Villacorta, Claudia.Villacorta@waterboards.ca.gov 
Kason Grady, Kason.Grady@waterboards.ca.gov 
Adona White, Adona.White@waterboards.ca.gov 

Department of Fish and Wildlife
Ryan Bourque, Ryan.Bourque@wildlife.ca.gov 
Scott Bauer, Scott.Bauer@wildlife.ca.gov 
Joshua Zulliger, Joshua.Zulliger@wildlife.ca.gov 

Division of Water Rights 
Stormer Feiler, Stormer.Feiler@waterboards.ca.gov 
Taro Murano, Taro.Murano@waterboards.ca.gov 
Zachary Gomer, Zachary.Gomer@waterboards.ca.gov 

mailto:Northcoast.Cannabis@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Claudia.Villacorta@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Kason.Grady@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Adona.White@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Ryan.Bourque@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:Scott.Bauer@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:Joshua.Zulliger@wildlife.ca.gov
mailto:Stormer.Feiler@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Taro.Murano@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Zachary.Gomer@waterboards.ca.gov


Silvio Re  - 6 - April 13, 2021

Attachment A – Regulatory Citations 

Regulatory Section Citation
Basin Plan Section 
4.2.1, Prohibition 1

Prohibits “[t]he discharge of soil, silt, bark, slash, sawdust, or other organic and earthen 
material from any logging, construction, or associated activity of whatever nature into any 
stream or watercourse in the basin in quantities deleterious to fish, wildlife, or other 
beneficial uses.”

Basin Plan Section 
4.2.1, Prohibition 2

Prohibits “[t]he placing or disposal of soil, silt, bark, slash, sawdust, or other organic and 
earthen material from any logging, construction, or associated activity of whatever nature at 
locations where such material could pass into any stream or watercourse in the basin in 
quantities which could be deleterious to fish, wildlife, or other beneficial uses.”

California Water Code 
Section 13260

“(a) Each of the following persons shall file with the appropriate regional board a report of the 
discharge, containing the information that may be required by the regional board: 

(1) A person discharging waste, or proposing to discharge waste, within any region that 
could affect the quality of the waters of the state, other than into a community sewer 
system.

(2) A person who is a citizen, domiciliary, or political agency or entity of this state 
discharging waste, or proposing to discharge waste, outside the boundaries of the state 
in a manner that could affect the quality of the waters of the state within any region.”

California Water Code 
Section 13261(a)

“A person who fails to furnish a report or pay a fee under Section 13260 when so requested 
by a regional board is guilty of a misdemeanor and may be liable civilly in accordance with 
subdivision (b).” 

California Water Code 
Section 13264 (a)

“No person shall initiate any new discharge of waste or make any material changes in any 
discharge, or initiate a discharge to, make any material changes in a discharge to, or 
construct, an injection well, prior to the filing of the report required by Section 13260 and no 
person shall take any of these actions after filing the report but before whichever of the 
following occurs first:”

California Water Code 
Section 13265(a)

“Any person discharging waste in violation of Section 13264 , after such violation has been 
called to his attention in writing by the regional board, is guilty of a misdemeanor and may be 

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000226&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=Iea17f800028711e8901798c3dc147ba8&cite=CAWAS13260
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&originatingContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&pubNum=1000226&refType=LQ&originatingDoc=Iaaf87410028711e8901798c3dc147ba8&cite=CAWAS13264
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Regulatory Section Citation
liable civilly in accordance with subdivision (b). Each day of such discharge shall constitute 
a separate offense.”

California Water Code 
Section 13350

“A person who (1) violates a cease and desist order or cleanup and abatement order 
hereafter issued, reissued, or amended by a regional board or the state board, or (2) in 
violation of a waste discharge requirement, waiver condition, certification, or other order or 
prohibition issued, reissued, or amended by a regional board or the state board, discharges 
waste, or causes or permits waste to be deposited where it is discharged, into the waters of 
the state, or (3) causes or permits any oil or any residuary product of petroleum to be 
deposited in or on any of the waters of the state, except in accordance with waste discharge 
requirements or other actions or provisions of this division, shall be liable civilly, and 
remedies may be proposed, in accordance with subdivision (d) or (e).”

Federal Clean Water Act 
Section 301 (a):

Section 301(a) provides that subject to certain exceptions, “the discharge of any pollutant by any 
person shall be unlawful.” 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a). One of the exceptions allowed for under the Clean 
Water Act is the discharge from a dredge and fill activity under the auspices of § 404 and 401 of the 
Clean Water Act. 33 U.S.C. § 1342. The Clean Water Act prohibits the discharge of any pollutant 
from a point source into waters of the United States without a section 404 dredge and fill permit and a 
section 401 state water quality certification.

Federal Clean Water Act 
Section 401

Section 401 (a)(1) “Any applicant for a Federal license or permit to conduct any activity including, but 
not limited to, the construction or operation of facilities, which may result in any discharge into the 
navigable waters, shall provide the licensing or permitting agency a certification from the State in 
which the discharge originates”

Federal Clean Water Act 
Section 404

Section 404(a) provides, in relevant part, “The Secretary may issue permits…for the discharge of 
dredged or fill material into the navigable waters…” The Code of Federal Regulations defines the 
term “dredged material” as material that is excavated or dredged from waters of the United States. 33 
C.F.R. § 323.2(c). The term “discharge or dredged material” mean any addition of dredge material 
into the waters of the United States. 33 C.F.R. § 323.2(d)(1). The Code of Federal Regulations 
defines “fill material” as material placed in waters of the United States that has the effect of replacing 
any potion of a water of the United States with dry land or changing the bottom elevation of any 
potion of a water of the United States. 33 C.F.R. § 323.2(e)(1). The term “discharge of fill material” 
means the additional of fill material into waters of the United States. 33 C.F.R. § 323.2(f).



TO: Diana Henrioulle

FROM: Adona White

DATE:  April 9, 2021 

Report for March 11, 2021 Warrant Inspection of Humboldt County Assessor’s 
Parcel Number 022-200-34

File:   Cannabis Program Inspections, Trinity County, 2021 Inspections, CIWQS Place 
ID 873461, Inspection ID 43653946 

Property Information 

County: Trinity

Physical address: 2611 Raff Creek Road, located along the Trinity County line with 
Mendocino, on Island Mountain, above the Mainstem Eel River.

APN: 022-220-34

Owner:   Silvio Re
7166 Humboldt Hill Road 
Eureka, CA 95503

Transaction History (per LandVision): 2007 from Siena Klein

Size: 160 acres

Watershed: Eel Hydrologic Unit; Middle Fork Eel River Hydrologic Area; Spy Rock 
Hydrologic Subarea (HU/HA/HSA 111.42; Table 2-1, Water Quality Control Plan for the 
North Coast Region).

Aerial Imagery Notes (Google Earth Pro): A simpler road system is visible on older 
photos, with an increase in roads between 2010-2014.  Ponds were constructed 
between 2012-2014.  Greenhouses were constructed between April 2019 and July 
2020. 

Regulatory status with the Regional Water Board

Site Development: No permits for site development are on record with the Regional 
Water Board
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Applicable Programs: Dredge and fill in surface waters is subject to the requirements of 
Clean Water Act sections 301, 401, and 404, requiring, in part, a Water Quality 
Certification or waiver thereof from the Regional Water Board.

Onsite Activities/Operations: no permits for onsite activities or operation are on record with 
the Regional Water Board

Applicable Programs: Cannabis cultivation and associated activities are subject to 
coverage under the Order WQ 2019-0001-DWQ (statewide cannabis General Order), 
Tier 2, High Risk

Inspection information:

Date/time: March 11, 2021

Type: Warrant

Attendance: 
Adona White, North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water 
Board)
Ryan Bourque and Kyle Shaw California Department of Fish and Wildlife
Zachary Gomer, Division of Water Rights
Various Law Enforcement officers

Background/Objective:
Inspection objectives for Regional Water Board staff included observing site 
development and activities and identifying and assessing onsite features or conditions 
that are causing or may cause adverse impacts to the quality and beneficial uses of 
receiving waters, including surface and ground water.
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Inspection Map

Figure 1.  Parcel map with 2018 aerial imagery and GPS locations collected during the 
inspection.
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Figure 2.  Inspection map of southern portion of Property, with GPS locations (numbers) 
and features of concern to water quality (WQ), with aerial imagery from 2020.
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Figure 3.  Inspection map of northern portion of Property, with GPS locations (numbers) 
and features of concern to water quality (WQ) with aerial imagery from 2020.

Inspection Observations

WQ1: An area of developed features including stream crossings (394, 385), terraces, 
excavation and fill that has impacted approximately 330 feet of one watercourse (386 to 
388) and 100 feet of another. Fuel tanks are located near stream (387). 

WQ2: There are two onstream, unlined ponds; I refer to the upper of the two ponds as 
Pond 1 and the lower of the two as Pond 2.  Pond 1 is constructed in apparent wetlands 
, in a location that captures spring flow into the pond (390), with an outlet (391) to a 
lower terrace and Pond 1 via a 12-inch plastic pipe.  There is a point of diversion (POD) 
associated with the spring (389).  

WQ3: This area is a series of stacked developed features that drain to the same 
watercourse identified in WQ1.  At the top, a cut and fill flat is constructed, with a ditch 
along the cut bank with wetland vegetation and standing water.  Fuel tanks, generators, 
garbage, including burned items, are located in areas that are in, or could enter into the 
watercourse.    The flat is also occupied by a hoophouse, and the outboard fill slope is 
on a steep slope above another pond, Pond 3.  Pond 3 is located at the top of and 
outlets to the watercourse channel described in WQ1.

WQ4: Eroded watercourse at stream crossing (402), undersized, not to grade, and lacks 
energy dissipation.  A bladder pad is located next to the watercourse.
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WQ5:  Bladder (403), without containment, is located within 50’ of Class III stream.

WQ6: I observed plastic, from an inactive point of diversion, in a watercourse (405).

WQ7: At this location, there is a watercourse crossing (406) with an 18” plastic pipe with 
a plugged inlet and an eroded fill prism at the outlet, associated with overtopping.  The 
water is diverted over the road and can transport sediment to the watercourse.

WQ8: A watercourse has an 18 inch plastic pipe that is perched above an incised 
channel (407).  The pipe is too short, not at grade, and lacks energy dissipation.

Table 1.  Description of inspection points identified on Figures 2 & 3.

Inspection 
Point

Description of Feature Water Quality Concern Associated 
Photos

WQ1 Development in and near 
watercourse, including 
terraces, cannabis cultivation, 
and stream crossings

Discharge of sediment to 
waters of the state

Figures 
4-12

WQ2 Development in and near 
watercourse including two 
onstream ponds

Discharge of sediment to 
waters of the state

Figures
13-17

WQ3 Development in and near 
watercourse including 
construction of cut and fill flat, 
cannabis cultivation, 
uncontained refuse and 
potting soil

Discharge of sediment 
and other waste to waters 
of the state

Figures 
18-32

WQ4 Stream crossing is 
undersized, not to grade, 
lacks energy dissipation

Discharge of sediment to 
waters of the state

Figures
33-34

WQ5 Water bladder lacks 
containment, located near 
watercourse

Threatened discharge of 
sediment to waters of the 
state

Figure
35 

WQ6 Diversion-related refuse in 
watercourse

Discharge of waste to 
waters of the state

Figure 
36

WQ7 Stream crossing is 
undersized and plugged and 
watercourse is overtopping 
road

Threatened and actual 
discharge of sediment to 
waters of the state

Figures
37-38
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Inspection 
Point

Description of Feature Water Quality Concern Associated 
Photos

WQ8 Stream crossing is 
undersized, not to grade, 
lacks energy dissipation

Threatened discharge of 
sediment to waters of the 
state

Figure
39

A comparison of conditions observed on the site with categories of activities 
typically associated with water quality concerns at cannabis cultivation sites:

1. Site maintenance, erosion control and drainage features: The roads and 
developed surfaces lack hydrologic disconnections and contribute sediment to 
watercourses.

2. Stream crossing maintenance and improvement: I observed numerous stream 
crossings that were failing or inadequate and are eroding to watercourses.

3. Riparian and wetland protection and management: I observed cultivation areas, 
bladders, ponds, and refuse in the riparian setbacks. 

4. Spoils management: I observed storage of spoils that were not stabilized.

5. Water storage and use: I observed onstream ponds within the riparian setbacks. I 
observed water storage bladders lacking secondary containment.

6. Irrigation runoff: I observed flowpaths from greenhouses indicating transport of 
runoff from irrigation.

7. Fertilizers and soil amendments: I observed inadequate storage of potting soil.

8. Pesticides: I did not observe pesticides. 

9. Petroleum products and other chemicals: I observed generators located adjacent 
to watercourses.

10. Cultivation-related wastes: I observed potting soil discarded near watercourses. 

11. Refuse and human waste:  Significant refuse is accumulated and not handled 
adequately.

Recommendations
1. Retain a licensed professional to inventory, assess, and develop a workplan and 

schedule to implement measures to ensure that all developed features, roads, 
watercourse crossings, and cultivation areas throughout the Property are 
corrected, restored, and/or maintained in conditions that prevent or minimize 
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erosion, sediment transport/delivery, and adverse impacts to water quality and 
beneficial uses. Include measures to ensure that unstable features caused or 
affected by onsite development and operations are removed or otherwise 
protected so as to minimize the potential for these features to cause adverse 
impacts to water quality and beneficial uses. Dispose of all development and 
restoration-related earthen spoils in a manner to prevent/minimize transport and 
delivery to receiving waters. 

2. Retain a qualified professional to delineate the extent natural channels of 
watercourses impacted by dredge and fill activities relating to the development of 
roads, cultivation, and associated activities.  Based upon the delineation, retain a 
qualified professional to develop a workplan and schedule to remove the fill and 
cannabis cultivation infrastructure associated with the areas and restore 
channels to their natural state. Dispose of all development and restoration-
related earthen spoils in a manner to prevent/minimize transport and delivery to 
receiving waters.

3. Work with CDFW and the State Water Resources Control Board’s Division of 
Water Rights (DIV) to determine and secure any applicable permits or licensing 
required for surface water diversion, storage, and use on the site. If the existing 
surface water diversions do not meet applicable CDFW or DIV requirements, 
remove diversion infrastructure from surface waters and ensure that restoration 
plans developed pursuant to Recommendation 1, above, include provisions for 
restoring any instream or riparian disturbance associated with this features or 
removal thereof. 

4. Submit design plans, construction schedule, and other relevant information to the 
Regional Water Board through the 401 Water Quality Certification process prior 
to starting work in surface waters. Work may not start until authorization is 
received from the Regional Water Board. See 401 Water Quality Certification 
application here: 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/cannabis/pdf/
200204/RB1_Cannabis_WQC_401_App.pdf 

5. Store and contain all potting soil, cultivation-related waste, and chemicals, 
including pesticides and petroleum products, properly to prevent spillage and 
potential for migration/transport into receiving waters. 

6. Haul away and properly dispose of excess soil and other debris as needed to 
prevent discharge to waters of the state. 

7. Use appropriate erosion control measures to minimize erosion of disturbed 
areas, potting soil, or bulk soil amendments to prevent discharges of waste

8. If the property owner and/or tenant(s) choose to continue to cultivate cannabis, 
enroll for coverage under and take steps to comply with the requirements of the 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/cannabis/pdf/200204/RB1_Cannabis_WQC_401_App.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/cannabis/pdf/200204/RB1_Cannabis_WQC_401_App.pdf
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CANGO (Order WQ 2019‐0001‐DWQ, General Waste Discharge Requirements 
and Waiver of Waste Discharge Requirements for Discharges of Waste 
Associated with Cannabis Cultivation Activities).  More information about the 
CANGO can be found at this link: 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/
2019/wqo2019_0001_dwq.pdf 

9. In the event that the property owner and/or tenant(s) propose in the future to 
develop or use the Property in a manner or method that will or may result in a 
discharge of waste to waters of the state in the future, staff recommend that the 
owner(s)/tenant(s) be aware of and comply with relevant regulatory requirements 
for water quality protection. For example, Water Code section 13260 requires 
that a person discharging waste, or proposing to discharge waste, within any 
region that could affect the quality of the waters of the state, other than into a 
community sewer system shall file with the appropriate regional board a report of 
the discharge. Further, Water Code section 13264 states, in part: “No person 
shall initiate any new discharge of waste or make any material changes in any 
discharge…prior to the filing of the report required by Section 13260.” In addition, 
projects involving the disturbance of an acre or more of land are subject to 
regulation under the State Water Board’s Construction General Stormwater 
permit, and projects involving dredge or fill in waters of the United States are 
subject to regulation under Clean Water Act section 401. You may find further 
information about Water Board permits that may apply to proposed site 
development or land use activities at this link: 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/permit 

Enforcement Discretion
The observations in this report will be assessed for violations of the California Water 
Code. The Regional Water Board and the State Water Board reserve the right to take 
any enforcement action authorized by law.

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2019/wqo2019_0001_dwq.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2019/wqo2019_0001_dwq.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/permit
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Photo Appendix

Figure 4.  Looking upstream at 
watercourse at WQ1, natural channel 
emerges from bay trees onto meadowed 
slope to stream crossing.

Figure 5.  Palm trees are planted in and 
near the natural channel.

Figure 6.  Looking downstream at 
watercourse at WQ1, channel is 
impacted by development.  Natural 
watercourse goes downslope toward 
people in photo.  Note the big oak tree 
for reference in Figure 8.

Figure 7.  Downstream of the crossings 
the watercourse is impacted by the 
construction of a cultivation flat. 
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Figure 8.  Fuel tanks are located under 
the big oak tree, as see in Figure 4, 
approximately 18 feet from the 
centerline of the watercourse.  

Figure 9.  Fill is pushed in the 
watercourse at the cultivation flat.

Figure 10.  A second watercourse 
originates from the cut bank of the 
cultivation flat.  

Figure 11.  The daylighted watercourse 
is routed around the flat to join the 
aforementioned watercourse.

Figure 12.  A steep unsurfaced road 
deliver sediment via rills and 
stormwater, to the watercourse in 
Figures 10 & 11.
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WQ2:

Figure 13.  View of two Ponds, Pond 1 
and Pond 2, located south of WQ1.  

Figure 14.  Pond 1 is the upper of the 
two ponds.

Figure 15. Outlet of Pond 1 to Pond 2.

Figure 16.  Pond 2 via upstream from 
berm.

Figure 17.  View of Pond 2 outlet pipe 
discharging to watercourse.
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WQ3:

Figure 18.  View upslope of Pond 3 and 
hoophouse located on constructed flat.

Figure 19.  View to the north from above 
Pond 3, with cultivation area on the left.

Figure 20.  Watercourse channel above 
Pond 3, with adjacent cultivation.

Figure 21. Potting soil and grow bags 
discarded in a location that waste could 
be transported to the watercourse 
shown in previous Figure.

Figure 22.  Generator located where 
runoff could be transported to same 
watercourse.

Figure 23.  View of constructed flat with 
accumulation of cultivation related 
materials.  The generator from previous 
figure is located in the middle of the 
photo in the distance.
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Figure 24. View of flat from northern 
edge.

Figure 25. Standing water at the 
northern edge of the flat.

Figure 26. Generator stored next to 
standing water shown in previous figure.

Figure 27.  Standing water and flexi pipe 
in ditch northern cutbank of the flat.

Figure 28. Burned garbage adjacent to 
cutbank ditch.

Figure 29. More burned garage.
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Figure 30. Cultivation-related waste 
accumulation. Note cut oak in distance, 
located above Pond 3.

Figure 31.  View of Pond 3. with oak cut 
above it.

Figure 32.  South of the cultivation flat 
has recent grading; I did not observe 
significant cut or fill slopes.

WQ4: 

Figure 33.  Eroded watercourse 
crossing, looking upstream.

Figure 34.  Eroded watercourse 
crossing, from left bank, looking 
downstream.

WQ5: 

Figure 35.  Water bladder located 
adjacent to stream crossing lacks 
containment.
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WQ6:

Figure 36.  Plastic in watercourse from 
inactive diversion.

WQ7:

Figure 37.  Plugged culvert inlet

Figure 38.  Diverted watercourse due to 
plugged culvert.

WQ8:

Figure 39.  Eroded outlet of culvert.


	210413_ACW_dp_SilvioRe_NOV
	Notice of Violation and Transmittal of Inspection Report for March 11, 2021 Inspection of Trinity County Assessor’s Parcel 022-200-34
	Background
	Relevant Requirements
	Observed Violations
	Additional Potential Liabilities
	Directive to Obtain Regulatory Coverage Prior to Future Activities Involving or Resulting in Discharges of Waste to Waters of the State


	210409_ACW_SilvioRe_210311InspectionRpt
	Report for March 11, 2021 Warrant Inspection of Humboldt County Assessor’s Parcel Number 022-200-34
	Property Information
	County
	Physical address
	APN
	Owner
	Transaction History (per LandVision)
	Size
	Watershed
	Aerial Imagery Notes (Google Earth Pro)

	Regulatory status with the Regional Water Board
	Site Developmen
	Onsite Activities/Operations

	Inspection information:
	Date/time
	Type
	Attendance
	Background/Objective
	Inspection Map
	Inspection Observations

	A comparison of conditions observed on the site with categories of activities typically associated with water quality concerns at cannabis cultivation sites:
	Site maintenance, erosion control and drainage features
	Stream crossing maintenance and improvement
	Riparian and wetland protection and management
	Spoils management
	Water storage and use
	Irrigation runoff
	Fertilizers and soil amendments
	Petroleum products and other chemicals
	Cultivation-related wastes
	Refuse and human waste

	Recommendations
	Enforcement Discretion



		2021-04-13T10:26:01-0700
	Diana Henrioulle




